If this information is required in an accessible format, please contact 1-800-372-1102 ext. 2097.

The Regional Municipality of Durham

MINUTES

HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

Thursday, April 8, 2021

A regular meeting of the Health & Social Services Committee was held on Thursday, April 8, 2021 in the Council Chambers Regional Headquarters Building, 605 Rossland Road East, Whitby, Ontario at 9:30 AM. Electronic participation was offered for this meeting.

1. Roll Call

Present: Councillor Chapman, Chair Councillor Pickles, Vice-Chair Councillor Anderson Councillor Carter Councillor Dies Councillor Roy Councillor Roy Regional Chair Henry attended the meeting at 9:39 AM *all members of the Committee participated electronically

Also

Present: Councillor Barton Councillor Crawford Councillor Foster Councillor Highet Councillor McLean Councillor Mulcahy Councillor Ryan Councillor Smith *all visiting Councillors participated electronically

Staff

- Present: E. Baxter-Trahair, Chief Administrative Officer
 - S. Danos-Papaconstantinou, Commissioner of Social Services
 - T. Fraser, Committee Clerk, Corporate Services Legislative Services
 - R. Inacio, Systems Support Specialist, Corporate Services IT
 - J. Jenkins, Manager, Population Health, Health Department
 - R.J. Kyle, Commissioner and Medical Officer of Health
 - P. McTavish, Associate Medical Officer of Health
 - J. Nesbitt, Director, Population Health and Chief Nursing Officer
 - V. Olmstead, Manager, Population Health, Health Department
 - A. Riddell, Housing Program Coordinator, Social Services

E. Valant, Manager, Affordable Housing & Homelessness Initiatives, Social Services

N. Prasad, Committee Clerk, Corporate Services – Legislative Services ***all staff except R. Inacio participated electronically**

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3. Adoption of Minutes

Moved by Councillor Roy, Seconded by Councillor Anderson,

(14) That the minutes of the regular Health & Social Services Committee meeting held on Thursday, March 4, 2021, be adopted. CARRIED

4. Statutory Public Meetings

There were no statutory public meetings.

5. Delegations

5.1 Carion Fenn, Carion Fenn Foundation, and Mike Young, Principal, Durham Catholic Virtual Elementary School, re: Durham Kids Health Week Project in partnership with Durham Catholic Virtual Elementary School

Carion Fenn, President and CEO, Carion Fenn Foundation, and Mike Young, Principal, Durham Catholic Virtual Elementary School, provided a delegation with regards to the Durham Kids Health Week Project in partnership with the Durham Catholic Virtual Elementary School.

M. Young stated that the Durham Catholic Virtual Elementary School is a 100% online virtual school with 3,508 students. It is supported by 117 regular classroom teachers from junior kindergarten to grade 8; 21 French emersion classes from grade 1 to grade 8; and has about 200 student support staff. He advised that student health has been a concern from the beginning of the virtual environment and not having students physically in class has required a huge switch. He stated that getting students to move and take care of themselves is something that is done daily and consciously.

M. Young advised that students and staff, along with mental health leads, have put together activities designed for various age groups that focus on key areas. He stated that some of the activities focused on during the mental health week are as follows:

- April 19th reducing screen time
- April 20th sleep

- April 21st nutrition
- April 22nd physical activity
- April 23rd mindfulness

M. Young advised that each classroom teacher will be provided with resources and the expectation is to deliver one or more lessons each day on the topics. He stated that mental health impacts students' abilities for learning and engagement and it is their job to help promote positive mental health.

C. Fenn stated that on April 22, Durham Catholic elementary school students, staff and family members will join a forum for two hours of fitness, music, discussion about mental health and bullying, mindfulness minutes, games, and a live cooking demonstration. She advised that more information is available on the <u>Carion Fenn website</u> and thanked Durham Region for proclaiming April 18th to 24th as Durham Kids Health Week.

C. Fenn and M. Young responded to questions of the committee.

6. **Presentations**

6.1 R.J. Kyle, Commissioner and Medical Officer of Health, re: COVID-19 Update

R.J. Kyle, Commissioner and Medical Officer of Health provided a PowerPoint presentation with regards to a COVID-19 Update. A copy of the PowerPoint was provided to members in advance of the meeting.

Highlights of the presentation included:

- COVID-19 Update
- Provincial Stay at Home Order
- Current Status
- Variants of Concern
- Vaccines Current State
- Extended Intervals for Second Dose
- Provincial COVID-19 Vaccine Plan
- Durham COVID-19 Vaccine Plan
- Mobile COVID-19 Vaccine
- Hot Spot Communities
- Durham Region Vaccine Uptake
- COVID-19 Vaccine AstraZeneca
- Current Vaccine Clinic Locations

R.J. Kyle advised that a new stay at home order was announced by the province which took effect at 12:01 AM on April 8th. He advised that nonessential retailers will be limited to curbside pick-up and delivery; big box stores will be limited to selling essential items; and schools and childcare centres will remain open.

R.J. Kyle provided a breakdown of statistics with regards to the third wave of the pandemic; current outbreak numbers; current status of cases; and details regarding the variants of concern. With regards to vaccines, he advised that there are 4 approved vaccines in Canada with Pfizer-BioNTech and Moderna being the two available in Durham Region. He advised that AstraZeneca has recently arrived and will be available in Durham Region through pharmacies and the Johnson & Johnson vaccine may arrive later in April.

R.J. Kyle advised that as of March 10, 2021, most second doses have moved to 16 weeks to ensure more people can receive the first dose due to the limited supply, as recommended by the National Advisory Committee on Immunization. The extension will help protect the adult population and contribute to health equity. Some exceptions to the extension are transplant recipients and individuals with cancer on certain treatments.

R.J. Kyle provided an overview of the provincial COVID-19 Vaccine Plan. He stated that Phase 1 of the plan targets the high-risk populations; Phase 2 will focus on mass deliveries of vaccines; and Phase 3 will be a steady state. He advised that Durham Region has moved into Phase 2 of the Plan.

R.J. Kyle advised that mobile clinics are available to provide vaccines to populations and individuals who may have difficulty accessing larger clinics. He provided an overview of hot spot communities and advised that in December 2020, both Ajax and Pickering were identified as high priority communities as they have been significantly impacted by COVID-19. He provided an overview of the plan to address these hot spots. He advised that AstraZeneca is available at multiple participating pharmacies in Durham Region and is available to anyone 55 years and older. He further advised that many of the pharmacies are located in the hot spots and bookings can be made directly with the pharmacies.

Staff responded to questions with regards to having a conversation with the province about getting timely updates; whether there can be more clarification on using the website to access different vaccination locations; jurisdiction over the closure of Durham Region schools; the possibility of community groups to help with supporting the vaccination clinics; whether all Durham Region firefighters and police officers have been vaccinated; whether by-law enforcement officers can be vaccinated; what is done with leftover vaccines at the end of the day; the percentage uptake of the vaccine; whether schools in the hot spots will be closed; whether there is a certain amount of vaccinations allocated to different groups; and the availability of the Moderna vaccine.

6.2 E. Valant, Manager, Affordable Housing & Homelessness Initiatives, regarding 2021 Point in Time Count

Erin Valant, Manager, Affordable Housing & Homelessness Initiatives, and Alyxandra Riddell, Housing Program Coordinator, provided a PowerPoint Presentation with regards to 2021 Point in Time Count.

Highlights of the presentation included:

- 2021 Point in Time Count & Durham's By-Name List
- What is a Point in Time Count
- Durham's 2021 Point in Time Count
- Point in Time Counts & By-Name Lists
- Coordinated Access in Action February 2021
- Actively Homeless Highlights
- Coordinated Access Highlights
- Using Data to Drive Reductions

E. Valant advised that a Point in Time (PiT) Count captures numbers and basic demographics of people experiencing homelessness over a 24-hour period. The following are the three ways the Count is conducted:

- a Street Count to identify all unsheltered residents;
- a Sheltered Count to identify all people staying in shelters; and
- a Service Count to identify people accessing services who have no fixed address.

E. Valant advised that the PiT Count is currently scheduled for the week of April 19 to 23, 2021. She advised that staff will be meeting on April 9th to have conversations based on the new stay at home order announced by the province. She also advised that due to COVID-19, the Count will be scaled back a bit and volunteers will be solicited from organizations operating within the homelessness support system.

E. Valant stated that data received from the PiT Count are often used to kickstart a community's By-Name List, which is a list of all people experiencing homelessness in a community. She provided an overview of the differences in the PiT Count and the By-Name Lists. She advised that the By-Name Lists provides all the information needed for Coordinated Access, which helps to prioritize people for housing resources based on need. She also provided an overview of the Coordinated Access data as of February 2021. A. Riddell provided an overview of the data with regards to age and acuity of the actively homeless population and advised that as of February 2021, there were 122 people actively experiencing homelessness. She stated that the Coordinated Access system has successfully housed over 104 chronically homeless people and of those housed, there has been a zero percent return to homelessness.

A. Riddell stated that the By-Name List and Coordinated Access Data is reviewed monthly to monitor trends in inflow and outflow; to inform system changes to drive reductions in chronic homelessness; and to identify areas of need and advocate for resources specific to those needs.

E. Valant responded to questions with regards to the continuation of the current strategies being used and the reasons behind the large percentage of actively homeless male adults.

7. Health

7.1 <u>Correspondence</u>

There were no communications to consider.

7.2 <u>Reports</u>

A) The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) Call for Board of Health Nominations (2021-MOH-3)

Report #2021-MOH-3 from R.J. Kyle, Commissioner and Medical Officer of Health, was received.

Moved by Councillor Pickles, Seconded by Regional Chair Henry, (15) That we recommend to Council:

- A) That the nomination of Councillor Bob Chapman for election to the alPHa Board of Directors for a two-year term to represent the Central East Region be endorsed; and
- B) That two members of Regional Council be identified to sponsor the nomination and complete the nomination form. CARRIED

8. Social Services

8.1 <u>Correspondence</u>

There were no communications to consider.

8.2 <u>Reports</u>

A) Canada-Ontario Community Housing Initiative (COCHI) Program 2020-2021 <u>Take-up Plan (2021-SS-5)</u>

Report #2021-SS-5 from S. Danos-Papaconstantinou, Commissioner of Social Services, was received.

Moved by Councillor Wotten, Seconded by Councillor Carter,

(16) That Report #2021-SS-5 of the Commissioner of Social Services be received for information.

CARRIED

B) Housing Program Appeals 2020 (2021-SS-6)

Report #2021-SS-6 from S. Danos-Papaconstantinou, Commissioner of Social Services, was received.

Moved by Councillor Wotten, Seconded by Councillor Carter,

(17) That Report #2021-SS-6 of the Commissioner of Social Services be received for information.

CARRIED

9. Advisory Committee Resolutions

There were no advisory committee resolutions to be considered.

10. Confidential Matters

There were no confidential matters to be considered.

11. Other Business

There was no other business to be considered.

12. Date of Next Meeting

The next regularly scheduled Health & Social Services Committee meeting will be held on Thursday, May 6, 2021 at 9:30 AM.

13. Adjournment

Moved by Councillor Pickles, Seconded by Councillor Wotten,

(18) That the meeting be adjourned.

CARRIED

The meeting adjourned at 11:23 PM

Respectfully submitted,

B. Chapman, Chair

N. Prasad, Committee Clerk